
 PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
 WORKSHOP 
 TUESDAY, JANUARY 19, 2010 
 PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES of the Prescott City Council Workshop held on January 19, 2010 in the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 201 South Cortez, Prescott, Arizona. 
 
  

 CALL TO ORDER 
   

   Mayor Kuykendall called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 

  ROLL CALL:    
 
  PRESENT:     ABSENT: 
  

Mayor Kuykendall    None 
Councilman Blair     
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson    
Councilwoman Linn 
Councilwoman Lopas 
Councilwoman Suttles  

 
1. Presentation on Midyear Budget Report. 
    
 Finance Director Mark Woodfill gave a PowerPoint presentation on the Mid-Year 

Budget Report for Fiscal Year 2010, Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, which addressed the following: 

    
YEAR TO DATE EXPENDITURES THROUGH DEC 31, 2009 

 
REVENUES  

    
TOTAL CITY 

   
 With regard to water, Mr. Woodfill said that the revenues coming in were 

adequate to cover operating costs and the current debt level, but there were 
future capital needs requiring funding and additional capital. 

   
   WATER FUND 

 
 Mr. Woodfill said that even thought it is one fund in the report, it is made up of 

four funds—water, alternate water, water system impact (fees) and water 
resource fees. 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – January 19, 2010                                                      Page 2 
 
 

   
 He said that when they look at a new water source, all of the costs associated 

with bringing it up to standard, etc. are considered in the project. The cost to 
meet the federal mandates with regard to arsenic for existing water sources is 
covered through the operating costs. 

 
 He said that the biggest problem with the Water Fund is the capital needs need 

to be addressed in the next few years. 
   

WASTEWATER FUND 
    
 Brief discussion was held on the sale of effluent to golf courses primarily, and 

also contractors for dust abatement. It was noted that by prior contractual 
agreements the City was required to provide effluence for some golf courses, but 
the effluence they have today and in the future has been obligated for recharge 
credits for assured water credits. 

    
SOLID WASTE/TRANSFER STATION FUND 

    
 Mr. Woodfill explained the landfill closure surcharge, noting that it was 

established based on an EPA requirement to close the landfill, dating back to 
when they had one. They have to accumulate enough funds to pay for possible 
liability. He said that they track it and look at it each year to make sure they are 
not over collecting. He said that it was audited separately. He said that they are 
in about the 15th year of a 30-year process. 

    
AIRPORT ENTERPRISE FUND  

    
 Discussion was held on whether the hangar rentals were market-based opposed 

to the “good ol’ boy” value. It was noted that they were getting there but they are 
still not market-driven. The rates had been kept down in the past and funded 
partly through the fuel prices but now that they are out of the fuel business, they 
need to be brought up.  

 
 Discussion was held on the fuel prices at the airport and it was noted that they 

were around $.80/gallon higher than surrounding airports. It has been said that 
many of the pilots are flying elsewhere to fuel. There is nothing in the contract to 
address fuel costs. Mr. Vardiman noted that they set up the fuel flowage fee on a 
rate structure where they decrease each year. He said that if they were to 
renegotiate that would be an area to address, but he would not be comfortable 
dictating the amount they could not go over for fuel prices. It was asked how the 
City would ever be able to get a return on their investment if the fuel prices were 
not competitive.  

 
    



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – January 19, 2010                                                      Page 3 
 
 With regard to tie-down fees, it was asked if the City’s portion was less because 

more were tying down at the concessionaire’s. Mr. Vardiman said that he 
believed it was a general decrease overall and a lot have decided to sell their 
aircraft. They have not seen a significant number going to another location. 

    
 It was asked if the City had tried to attract another vendor to come in to the 

airport if the fueling was not exclusive. Mr. Vardiman said that they have not; they 
have been working on the Minimum Operating Standards, going through a 
working group and they are nearing completion. Once that is done they would be 
on a better ground. He said that right now they have not seen new companies 
starting up; there have been a lot of mergers and takeovers of existing facilities. 
He said that another thing to consider is that there were only so many ways to 
slice a piece and if there is not enough business they could see them both fail. 

    
Discussion was also held on the wording of the Minimum Operating Standards. 
The document would prescribe that there would have to be an investment of so 
many dollars to competition to come in rather than setting the standards of what 
a FBO might need. It required an investment of at least $5 million, and it was 
noted that the amount of unrealistic so they would be addressing those issues. 

    
Discussion was held on the $1 million grant from the FAA and the fact that it was 
still out there, but had not been received. Mr. Vardiman said that the problem is 
that the FAA does not have a multiyear reauthorization. Congress keeps passing 
short-term authorizations, but it makes it difficult. He said that it is permissible to 
contract but they cannot issue any checks. It was agreed that they should not 
make plans with money they do not yet have. 

 
   GOLF COURSE  
 
 Mr. Woodfill said that they have been facing some challenges at the Golf Course 

but they are addressing them. It was noted that the restaurant paid off their loan 
so the debt service requirements will be less. It was noted that they are looking at 
the entire pricing structure at the Golf Course. 

   
 PARKING GARAGE  
    
 Discussion was held on the fact that the parking garage was five years old and 

they had at one time talked about starting to charge downtown. Mr. Norwood said 
that they have spent a lot of time with PDP looking at different options, but right 
now the mood was to not starting charging for on-street paring. 

 
 Discussion was held on the pros and cons of charging for downtown parking and 

it was agreed that further discussion would occur at the goals setting meeting. 
 
 
 



Prescott City Council  
Workshop – January 19, 2010                                                      Page 4 
 

  INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS OPERATING BUDGET 
 
   HURF   
 
 Mr. Woodfill said that this is funded primarily from the gasoline tax, which the 

state collects and distributes. He said that it does not go exclusively back to 
cities; it also funds DPS, the state highway program and county highway 
programs. He said that DPS has hit this revenue resource to help recover some 
of its costs.  

 
 Brief discussion was held on whether the City could charge for overloaded trucks 

and have those funds returned to this account. Mr. Woodfill said that it does not 
include those, but most of the trash pick up is done by the City. 

    
 1%  STRETS & OPEN SPACE – Special Revenue Fund 
    
 Discussion was held on the current one-percent and that the change to ¾% for 

streets only does not go into effect until 2016. Mr. Woodfill said that the largest 
amount of $5 million was related to the debt issue, which was delayed for seven 
months because of the litigation.  

 
 Discussion was held on the wording of the ballot measure and the fact that it was 

the Council’s discretion on how to distribute the one-cent tax revenues between 
roads and open space. 

 
2. Adjournment. 
 
 Mr. Norwood said that since they did not get through the entire presentation, they 

would finish up next week. 
 
 There being no further business to be discussed, the Workshop of the Prescott 

City Council held on January 19, 2010 adjourned at 2:47 p.m. 
 
 
 
      
 
       ______________________________  
       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 


